
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Iau, 22 Ionawr 2015  

 

Amser: 

09.15 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565 

SeneddPPIA@Cynulliad.Cymru  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

Cyfarfod preifat cyn y prif gyfarfod (09.15 - 09.30) 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (09.30)  

2 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru  - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 4 (09.30 - 10.30) 

(Tudalennau 1 - 33)  

Prifysgolion Cymru a ColegauCymru 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur 1 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur 2 

 

Yr Athro John Grattan, Cadeirydd Grŵp Cynghori ar Ddysgu ac Addysgu Prifysgolion 

Cymru, a Dirprwy Is-ganghellor Prifysgol Aberystwyth 

Amanda Wilkinson, Cyfarwyddwr Prifysgolion Cymru 

Greg Walker, Prif Weithredwr – ColegauCymru  

Jim Bennett – Pennaeth Coleg Gwent 

3 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 5 (10.30 - 12.00) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



(Tudalennau 34 - 53)  

Cyngor Cwricwlwm, Arholiadau ac Asesu (CCEA), Arholiadau Rhydychen Caergrawnt a 

RSA (OCR) ac Edexcel (Pearson) 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur 3 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur 4 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur 5 

 

Justin Edwards, Prif Weithredwr – CCEA 

Anne-Marie Duffy, Cyfarwyddwr Cymwysterau - CCEA 

Paul McGlade, Rheolwr Cenedlaethol Iwerddon a Chymru – OCR 

Derek Richardson, Cyfarwyddwr Cymwysterau, Datblygu ac Asesu Gwasanaethau 

Cymwysterau Pearson – Edexcel  

4 Papurau i’w nodi (12.00)  

 

Llythyr oddi wrth yr Athro y Fonesig Sue Bailey – CAMHS yng Nghymru  (Tudalennau 

54 - 55) 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur i’w nodi 6 

 

 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau - P-04-559 Ymwybyddiaeth mewn 

Ysgolion Uwchradd o Hunan-niweidio  (Tudalennau 56 - 71) 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Papur i’w nodi 7 

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

Universities Wales (Unis Wales)   Prifysgolion Cymru 
2 Caspian Point, Caspian Way, Cardiff CF10 4DQ   2 Pentir Caspian, Ffordd Caspian, Caerdydd CF10 4DQ 
Director: Amanda Wilkinson  Cyfarwyddwraig: Amanda Wilkinson 
+44 (0)29 2044 8020  www.uniswales.ac.uk  +44 (0)29 2044 8020  www.uniswales.ac.uk 
A National Council of Universities UK  Un o Gynghorau Cenedlaethol Prifysgolion y DU 
Company limited by guarantee, registered in England and Wales No. 2517018  Cwmni cyfyngedig trwy warant, a gofrestrwyd yng Nghymru a Lloegr Rhif 2517018 
Charity No. 1001127  Rhif Elusen 1001127 

 

 
 

Sarah Bartlett 
Deputy Clerk 
Children, Young People and Education Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff CF99 1NA 
 
12 January 2014 
 
Dear Ms Bartlett, 
 
Qualifications Wales Bill: evidence session with Universities Wales, 22 January 2015 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide evidence on the Qualifications Wales Bill to the 
Children, Young People and Education Committee on 22 January 2015. In advance of the 
session we wish to submit our outline views on the Bill, which we hope will be of assistance 
to you.   
 
Universities Wales is the representative body for universities in Wales and its governing 
council comprises the vice chancellors of Welsh Universities and the Director of the Open 
University in Wales. The former Chair of Universities Wales and Vice Chancellor of Bangor 
University, Professor John Hughes, was a member of the 14-19 Education Review.  
Professor April McMahon, Vice Chancellor of Aberystwyth University, is a member of the 
Qualifications Wales Advisory Board on behalf of the university sector.   
 
Universities Wales would make the following points to be considered in establishing 
Qualifications Wales through the proposed Bill: 
 

Establishment of Qualifications Wales 

 
1. We are supportive of the establishment of a single body (Qualifications Wales) 

which is responsible for the regulation and quality assurance of all non-degree level 
qualifications in Wales. We understand that there will also be scope over vocational 
qualifications, but that the debate over apprenticeships continues to be discussed. 
In our response to last year’s Welsh Government consultation on proposals to 
establish a new body, we were keen that the current division between the regulatory 
function of Qualifications Wales and its delivery function could be addressed over 
time.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-02-15 - Paper 1 - Universities Wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 20

http://www.uniswales.ac.uk/
http://www.uniswales.ac.uk/


 
 

2. In order to be successful, we concur with the view that Qualifications Wales will 
need to work in partnership with a range of stakeholders and other organisations. In 
addition to core provider interests, such organisations include those responsible for 
careers advice, employers, and universities. Universities Wales understands that 
the Qualifications Wales Board will not include representation from specific groups, 
including higher education, but rather will seek individuals with corporate expertise 
(financial, legal etc). It is absolutely vital that universities are represented 
appropriately on the Qualifications Wales Board, and it is deeply concerning that 
universities will not have sufficient representation under the current proposals. 
Universities Wales urges a rethink on this, to ensure that the higher education voice 
is heard.  

 
3. In establishing any new body there will be a range of unforeseen consequences, 

including in this case, the impact on rigidity or fluidity of the curriculum or how 
existing examination providers will evolve. The real and perceived value of the new 
body will be important. The new body should prioritise and facilitate the learner 
journey, raise standards and provide a clear focus on high level achievements.   
 

4. Universities Wales is keen that the new body is established in a cost efficient 
manner. There will be costs associated with any new arrangement, however. In this 
case we should expect expenditure requirements not just for establishment but for 
stakeholders including the training and development of teachers to deliver new 
requirements. There will also be significant communication costs if the endeavour is 
to be a success.   
 

Curriculum 

 
5. We note the potential enhanced role the new body could play in setting curriculum 

requirements and designating subjects. This could be a contentious area and the 
consultation requirements associated with these functions will need to be clear. The 
process for determining ‘priority qualifications’ is a case in point.   

 
6. Response to Welsh Government consultation overwhelmingly identified a role for 

universities in providing advice on the A level curriculum (although the benefits of 
university engagement should not be restricted to A levels). Indeed, universities 
have an important role to play in developing the A level curriculum and in ensuring 
that A level content supports progression into higher education. University 
academics and staff are already extensively engaged in this way and have worked 
with awarding organisations for many years, for example, in providing advice on 
higher level vocational qualifications, which feed directly into some university 
programmes.  
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 
7. A levels will need to remain broad enough to prepare students for the next stage of 

life, whether in higher education, employment or other forms of education. Whilst we 
believe that A levels are broadly fit for purpose for progression into higher 
education, we support the creation of a body with responsibility to ensure that they 
continue to meet their objectives and remain robust, and internationally comparable.  
This is particularly important in an increasingly competitive global job market, where 
employers are demanding greater numbers of highly skilled individuals.   
 

Communication 

 
8. We feel that the stated aim of Qualifications Wales in promoting public confidence in 

qualifications and in the Welsh qualification system may be too narrow. The new 
body will need also to inspire the confidence of employers, universities and other 
stakeholders not just in Wales but across the UK and internationally. The 
fundamental importance of qualifications extends beyond the individual to include 
the benefits of a recognised, highly qualified population in attracting employers.   

 
9. Indeed, the importance of recognition and reputation for high quality, relevant 

qualifications cannot be overstated. In taking steps to differentiate Welsh 
qualifications, Qualifications Wales must ensure at least parity recognition with its 
closest competitors – in reality it should be seeking to go well beyond that.   
 

10. We would therefore like to see greater emphasis in the Bill on the European and 
international dimension of the engagement Qualifications Wales must undertake. 
Such engagement will include programmes such as the European Qualifications 
Framework and NARIC (the agency responsible for providing information, advice 
and expert opinion on UK qualifications worldwide). Welsh qualifications do not and 
will not exist in a vacuum, and any new legislation should be responsive enough to 
take account of those developments outside Wales, and avoid an insular approach.   
 

11. We have been very encouraged by the positive working relationship which has been 
sought in relation to implementing these proposals which has allowed us to avoid 
the sorts of damaging debates seen elsewhere. The benefits of communication and 
engagement from a university perspective include: 
 A greater understanding of the content and delivery of new qualifications and 

hence the incoming skills and knowledge of students 
 An opportunity to forge relationships with pre-higher education institutions and 

potential future applicants 
 Opportunities to become involved in delivering new qualifications 
 Alignment of CPD programmes to focus on the skills needed to deliver the new 

qualifications.   
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 22

https://www.naric.org.uk/naric/


 
We look forward to meeting the Committee on 22 January to discuss these matters further.   
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Amanda Wilkinson 
Director, Universities Wales 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 1 

National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Paper 2 

Qualifications Wales Bill 

Evidence from: ColegauCymru 

 

Consultation questions 

 

The Explanatory Memorandum prepared by the Welsh Government 

describes the Bill’s main purposes in the following terms:  

 

The Bill provides for the establishment of Qualifications Wales as the 

independent regulatory body responsible for the recognition of 

awarding bodies and the review and approval of non-degree 

qualifications in Wales.  Qualifications Wales will also, along with the 

Welsh Ministers, be responsible for preparing a list of priority 

qualifications, designated as such by reason of the significance of the 

qualification, having regard to the needs of learners and employers in 

Wales.  The intention is, through the establishment of Qualifications 

Wales, to strengthen the oversight of qualifications and of the 

qualification system in Wales. 

 

The Bill is intended to address the four main limitations of the current 

system. These are outlined in the Explanatory Memorandum as:  

 

• there is no single organisation that is dedicated to ensuring the 

effectiveness of qualifications and the qualification system; 

 

• there are no powers to prioritise qualifications and to thereby 

focus regulatory activity where it is most needed – with the result that 

there are large numbers of regulated qualifications but limited 

resources to ensure effectiveness; 

 

• there are no powers to select a single provider of a given 

qualification to ensure that learners across Wales take the same 

qualification; and 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 2 

• the capacity to drive forward the strategic development of 

qualifications within the current arrangements is too limited - 

creating a risk that Wales’ qualifications will not be held in as high 

esteem, nationally and internationally, as those in other nations. 

 

The Bill provides Qualifications Wales with the following principal 

aims, and it must act compatibly with these when exercising its 

functions: 

 

a) Ensuring that qualifications, and the Welsh qualification system, are 

effective for meeting the reasonable needs of learners in Wales; and 

b) Promoting public confidence in qualifications and in the Welsh 

qualification system. 

 

Question 1 - Is there a need for a Bill for the purposes outlined 

above?   
 

1. ColegauCymru has supported the broad agenda set out in the Review of 
Qualifications for 14 to 19-year olds in Wales (“the Review”) chaired by Huw 
Evans OBE that reported in November 2012.  The recommendation to 
establish an independent qualifications regulator separate from the Welsh 
Government was a key recommendation of that report.  
 
2. ColegauCymru contributed constructively to the Review and the extensive 
follow up work implementing its recommendations.  
 

 In partnership with the Welsh Government, ColegauCymru organised 
a national consultation conference on qualifications in February 2012 
which was addressed by the then-Deputy Minister for Skills, Jeff 
Cuthbert AM, as well as Professor Alison Wolf of King‟s College 
London, and Huw Evans OBE.  

 

 The report of the Review team in November 2012 reflected many of 
the main points that ColegauCymru had raised in its submission to the 
Review in August 2012 (a copy of this submission can be found here: 
www.collegeswales.ac.uk/download.ashx?r=628). 

 
3. ColegauCymru suggested, in its submission to the Review, that the 
regulation of qualifications should be exercised independently of day-to-day 
ministerial control.  We argued that this would bolster public confidence in 
the quality assurance of qualifications for both general and vocational 
qualifications.  We are pleased to see that the Qualifications Wales Bill 
enshrines this principle clearly.  The strategic legal powers assigned to 
Qualifications Wales would also help enable it to fulfil its challenging role, 

Tudalen y pecyn 25

http://www.collegeswales.ac.uk/download.ashx?r=628


 3 

were the Bill to be enacted.  ColegauCymru therefore supports the 
overarching principles of the Bill. 

 
4. ColegauCymru has continued to play an active role in the development of 
the new qualifications regime in Wales through membership of the Welsh 
Government‟s Stakeholder Reference Group on qualifications reform among 
other groups.  In all of these discussions we seek to place the interests of 
learners and the economic and social needs of employers first. 
ColegauCymru is also engaged in project work with the Welsh Government 
on the implementation of some of the Review‟s key recommendations. 

5. The four limitations of the current system outlined by Welsh Government 
in its Explanatory Memorandum are well made and accurate.  For these 
specified reasons - and for the sake of perceived independence from 
operational governmental control - the Bill is a timely and important 
development for qualifications regulation in Wales.  ColegauCymru 
supports the key elements of the Bill. 
 

If you believe there is a need for the Bill, what are the main issues 

that need to be resolved?  

 
6. While supporting the principles of the Bill, ColegauCymru believes that 
there is a need for a clearer remit for Qualifications Wales to fulfil the two 
additional purposes: 
 

 The promotion of a genuine parity of esteem between academic 
qualifications and vocational qualifications within our society. 
There is still a significant divergence in the cultural and social attitudes 
to these forms of study and learning outcomes among the media, 
learners, parents and employers that leads not only to social injustice 
but also to significant missed economic opportunities for Wales. 
Wales‟ future capacity to prosper as an industrial economy and 
achieve social inclusion will partly depend on us overcoming this 
disparity of esteem. 

 

 We consider that Qualifications Wales should ensure that our 
qualifications fully aligned and comparable with the European 
Qualifications Framework (EQF).  This is a key issue for Wales as 
many people wishing to work or study in the European Union (EU) will 
benefit from qualifications that are properly recognised in other parts 
of Europe.  One of the four strategic objectives of Education and 
Training 2020 (ET2020 – the European Commission‟s strategic 
framework for European cooperation in education and training) is to 
„make lifelong learning and mobility a reality‟ therefore the portability 
of qualifications across Europe will continue to be an important issue if 
this objective is to be realised by the member states of the EU.  
 
As Wales‟ National Coordination Point for the EQF, for the European 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 4 

Credit System for Vocational Education and Training (ECVET) and for 
European Quality Assurance in Vocational Education and Training 
(EQAVET), ColegauCymru offers its support to Qualifications Wales in 
this particular area of work. 

 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.  

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 2 - Do you think the Bill, as drafted, delivers the stated 

objectives as set out in the Explanatory Memorandum?   
 
7. Yes, we judge that it does generally.  However, the caveats outlined above 
in response to Question 1 should be addressed through specific 
amendments to the Bill, as we suggest below. 

 

If not, how do you think the Bill should be amended to take account 

of this?  

 
8. ColegauCymru believes that that the two purposes mentioned in our 
response to Question 1 should be reflected in specific amendments which 
add subclauses (i) and (j) at section 3 subsection 2.  These subclauses 
should state that Qualifications Wales should also: 
 

(i) promote the parity of esteem between academic and vocational 
qualifications and 
(ii) promote the compatibility of qualifications in Wales with the 
relevant European credit and qualifications frameworks.  

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 3 - Are the sections of the Bill as drafted appropriate to 

bring about the purposes described above?   

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 5 

 
9. Whilst we would not wish to make a technical judgement on the quality of 
the legal drafting of the Bill, our initial reading is that the clauses of the Bill 
generally enable the discharge of the Bill‟s purposes.  

 

If not, what changes do you believe need to be made to the Bill?  

 
10. We have no further comment on Question 3. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 4 - Has the Welsh Government correctly identified the four 

main limitations of the current arrangement, and will the two 

principal aims the Bill sets for Qualifications Wales, as well as the 

eight matters which it must have regard when exercising its 

functions, effectively address these limitations? 
 
11. Since the inception of the Review of Qualifications, ColegauCymru‟s 
position has been that qualifications regulation should, in principle, be 
exercised at arms length from direct Ministerial control.  This is not listed in 
the four main limitations of the current arrangements and so we would argue 
that the lack of an arms length approach in the current system is, in effect, a 
fifth limitation to the current arrangements.  
 
12. As for the eight matters to which Qualifications Wales must have regard, 
we have already stated above in relation to Questions 2 that amendments 
should be tabled to the Bill to reflect the matters that we have raised in 
response to Question 1. 

 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved? 

 
13. The Bill itself, by establishing an arms length arrangement for 
qualifications regulation in Wales, addresses this point. 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



 6 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.  

Question 5 - What are your views on the proposals for determining 

‘priority qualifications’ and, within these, ‘restricted priority 

qualifications’? 
 
14. The proposals as outlined seem both reasonable and proportionate to 
the function concerned.  An additional regulatory focus on key qualifications 
seems to be a sensible and prudent.  We would expect that both general and 
vocational qualifications would be considered to be priority qualifications in 
this regard. 
 

If you think there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

 
15. At this stage it is difficult to foresee specific problems in the exercise of 
this particular regulatory function. 
 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 6 - What are your views on the commissioning type process 

Qualifications Wales would undertake under the Bill, in respect of 

restricted priority qualifications? 
 
16. The commissioning of qualifications is an important function for 
Qualifications Wales that ColegauCymru supports.  Powers in this regard are 
enshrined into the clauses of the Bill.  This function could help address 
situations where there is market failure for qualifications in situations where 
Wales has particular economic, educational, social or linguistic needs not 
currently addressed by awarding bodies. 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 7 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

 
17. At this stage it is difficult to foresee specific problems in the exercise of 
this particular role for Qualifications Wales.  ColegauCymru does not have a 
general concern about this function for Qualifications Wales, as outlined in 
the Bill. 
 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 7 - How will the Bill change what organisations do currently 

and what impact will such changes have, if any? 
 

18. At this stage it is difficult to speculate usefully on the Bill‟s concrete 
impact on specific organisations.  It is obvious that awarding bodies will be 
among those organisations that will be most directly affected if the Bill 
becomes an Act in anything like its current form.  We note one challenge in 
response to the relationship between the Welsh Government‟s on-going 
policy making functions and Qualifications Wales‟ responsibilities below. 
 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

 
19. The policy formulation role of the Welsh Government in relation to the 
broad education curriculum and Qualifications Wales‟ role in relation to the 
qualifications (that accredit the learning outcomes of that curriculum) will 
have to be coordinated appropriately.  This will require a fully worked out 
modus operandi between the Welsh Government and Qualifications Wales. 
 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 8 

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 8 - What are the potential barriers to implementing the 

provisions of the Bill (if any) and does the Bill take account of them? 
 
20. Some of the key potential barriers to the successful implementation of 
the Bill include: 
 

 The financial constraints on Qualifications Wales once it is established 
(if the Bill is enacted) 

 The responsiveness of awarding bodies to the new regulatory regime 
in Wales 

 The establishment of a successful modus operandi between the 
curriculum-setting policy function of the Welsh Government and the 
qualifications regulations functions of Qualifications Wales. 

 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

 
21. Successful implementation of the Bill will require a „Team Wales‟ 
approach focussed on fulfilling the interests of learners and the social and 
economic needs of employers.  Colleges, and ColegauCymru itself, will play 
a constructive part in this „Team Wales‟ approach to making the new system 
a success when/if the Bill is enacted. 
 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 9 - Do you have any views on the way in which the Bill falls 

within the legislative competence of the National Assembly for Wales? 

 

22. We note the assurance of the Welsh Government that the Bill is within 
the legislative competence of the National Assembly.  

 

Question 10 - What are your views on powers in the Bill for Welsh 

Ministers to make subordinate legislation (i.e. statutory instruments, 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 9 

including regulations, orders and directions)?  

In answering this question, you may wish to consider Section 5 of the 

Explanatory Memorandum, which contains a table summarising the 

powers delegated to Welsh Ministers in the Bill to make orders and 

regulations, etc. 

 
23. The proposed use of the affirmative resolution procedure for the various 
regulations that will flow from the Bill when/if it becomes an Act is appropriate 
given the intention of the Bill to suitably distance qualifications regulation 
from operational Ministerial control. 

Question 11 - What are your views on the financial implications of the 

Bill? 

In answering this question you may wish to consider Part 2 of the 

Explanatory Memorandum (the Regulatory Impact Assessment), which 

estimates the costs and benefits of implementation of the Bill. 
 

24. In the current climate of general reductions in public spending all 
proposals to increase the net cost of public service functions must be subject 
to rigorous scrutiny and challenge.  
 
25. All of the viable options (Option 1b to Option 3) presented in the 
Explanatory Memorandum require some additional public expenditure, which 
is to be expected given the additional regulatory functions to be undertaken. 
We also note that the additional monies required to fund these functions 
would, in all likelihood, be taken from other elements of the education and 
skills budget in Wales - including the actual delivery of programmes of 
learning (leading to qualifications) by education and skills providers.  It is 
concerning therefore that the annual operating costs for option 3 (the 
preferred option) is around £2.8m-£3m more than that of Option 1b. 
 
26. We would therefore request that the projected running costs of 
Qualifications Wales is subject to a further rigorous benchmarking review by 
officials and the Wales Audit Office prior to any budget being agreed by the 
Welsh Government for the new body.  Every publicly funded body in Wales 
has to demonstrate that its operations are as lean, efficient and economical 
as possible in the fiscal circumstances we face. 

Question 12 - Are there any other comments you wish to make about 

specific sections of the Bill? 

 
27. There are no further points that we wish to make.  We are happy for this 
submission to the committee to be placed in the public domain. 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 10 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Paper 3 

Qualifications Wales Bill 

Evidence from: Council for the Curriculum Examinations and 

Assessment (CCEA) 

 
Consultation questions 

 

 

The Explanatory Memorandum prepared by the Welsh Government 

describes the Bill’s main purposes in the following terms:  

 

The Bill provides for the establishment of Qualifications Wales as the 

independent regulatory body responsible for the recognition of 

awarding bodies and the review and approval of non-degree 

qualifications in Wales.  Qualifications Wales will also, along with the 

Welsh Ministers, be responsible for preparing a list of priority 

qualifications, designated as such by reason of the significance of the 

qualification, having regard to the needs of learners and employers in 

Wales.  The intention is, through the establishment of Qualifications 

Wales, to strengthen the oversight of qualifications and of the 

qualification system in Wales. 

 

The Bill is intended to address the four main limitations of the current 

system.  These are outlined in the Explanatory Memorandum as:  

 

• there is no single organisation that is dedicated to ensuring the 

effectiveness of qualifications and the qualification system; 

 

• there are no powers to prioritise qualifications and to thereby 

focus regulatory activity where it is most needed – with the result that 

there are large numbers of regulated qualifications but limited 

resources to ensure effectiveness; 

 

• there are no powers to select a single provider of a given  

Tudalen y pecyn 34

Eitem 3



 

qualification to ensure that learners across Wales take the same 

qualification; and 

 

• the capacity to drive forward the strategic development of 

qualifications within the current arrangements is too limited - 

creating a risk that Wales’ qualifications will not be held in as high 

esteem, nationally and internationally, as those in other nations. 

 

The Bill provides Qualifications Wales with the following principal 

aims, and it must act compatibly with these when exercising its 

functions: 

 

a) Ensuring that qualifications, and the Welsh qualification system, are 

effective for meeting the reasonable needs of learners in Wales; and 

b) Promoting public confidence in qualifications and in the Welsh 

qualification system. 

 

 

Question 1 - Is there a need for a Bill for the purposes outlined 

above?   

Section 3 of the Exploratory memorandum notes the heavy influence 

of requirements in England on Welsh qualifications policy, with the 

needs of Welsh learners coming secondary to the requirements of 

English policy (para 3).  It also notes concerns regarding the 

differences there can be across qualifications of similar titles within a 

competitive or open market structure.  The Bill provides for the 

establishment of Qualification Wales to allow independent regulation 

and quality assurance of all non-degree level qualifications in Wales. 

This will allow for the design, development and approval of 

qualifications which have a specific Wales focus and/or which meet 

the needs of Welsh learners.  The Bill will establish an independent 

body, accountable to the Welsh Assembly, with responsibility for 

ensuring that the qualifications system in Wales is fit for purpose. 

If you believe there is a need for the Bill, what are the main issues 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



that need to be resolved?  

 

The Bill covers the main areas to be resolved in terms of the need to 

ensure that the Welsh qualification system meets the need of learners 

for Wales.  It is important that the proposed ongoing review relating 

to the consideration of future awarding body aspects of Qualifications 

Wales (recommended by the Huw Evans Review) continues to be 

addressed and is not lost once Qualifications Wales begins to operate 

in what will be a very busy environment.  It is also important to clarify 

the roles of Qualifications Wales, Welsh Government and Awarding 

Organisations and how the effective discharge of roles will operate. 

Linked to this in the interim is the need for clarity to be established 

as to the commissioning model to be used by Qualifications Wales. 

 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.  

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem  √ 

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 2 - Do you think the Bill, as drafted, delivers the stated 

objectives as set out in the Explanatory Memorandum?   

The Bill will support the independence, simplification and 

strengthening of regulation (para 193 Explanatory memorandum) by 

removing this role from Welsh ministers and setting up an 

independent body for this purpose.  In our experience this will instil 

public confidence in the independence of the function.  

 

The further parts of the Bill regarding the list of Priority qualifications 

and possible designation of Restricted Priority qualifications will meet 

the objectives set out in para 31 of the Explanatory notes, i.e. to 

avoid inconsistency between different forms of a given qualification 

and allow Qualifications Wales to exercise choice between  Awarding 

Organisations.  This will enable Qualifications Wales to make 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



decisions as to the number of qualifications that can be approved for 

offer in Wales, simplifying the qualifications offer which during the 

Review and subsequent qualifications was viewed as over 

complicated.  It will also give powers to select a single provider if it is 

felt that all learners across Wales should take the same qualification, 

again an area viewed as a limitation of the current system. 

If not, how do you think the Bill should be amended to take account 

of this?  

No further suggestions. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.  

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.  √ 

Question 3 - Are the sections of the Bill as drafted appropriate to 

bring about the purposes described above?   

The proposed powers to be given to Qualifications Wales and the 

activities that they will be required to carry out, as drafted in the Bill, 

will allow Qualifications Wales to work towards meeting the two 

principal aims as outlined above. 

If not, what changes do you believe need to be made to the Bill?  

No changes proposed. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem.  √ 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



Question 4 - Has the Welsh Government correctly identified the four 

main limitations of the current arrangement, and will the two 

principal aims the Bill sets for Qualifications Wales, as well as the 

eight matters which it must have regard when exercising its 

functions, effectively address these limitations? 

The limitations identified follow on from the regulatory and 

qualifications market recommendations in the Review and outline 

areas where change is needed to allow the recommendations as a 

whole to be further acted upon.  Further recommendations relating to 

the operation of Qualifications Wales in terms of awarding are noted 

as being for action in future legislation.  It seems appropriate to 

establish the regulatory parameters initially whilst work is ongoing in 

other areas which may impact upon the future operation of 

Qualifications Wales in terms of aspects of  for example awarding  

The two principal aims and the eight matters should address the 

limitations outlined. 

 

The aims give Qualifications Wales responsibility for the effectiveness 

of qualifications and the qualifications system in Wales, as well as 

promoting public confidence in both.  It addresses the lack of a single 

dedicated organisation and reduces the risk of Wales’ qualifications 

being held in lower esteem.  

 

Limitations two and three are not directly addressed by the aims and 

matters identified but the details of the work Qualifications Wales will 

be asked to carry out in terms of the list of priority qualifications and 

restricted priority qualifications do address these areas. The overall 

aim of ensuring the Welsh qualification system is effective in meeting 

the needs of learners allows for a wide range of activities that could 

be undertaken to address all limitations. 

 

Likewise, the eight matters do not directly address the limitations 

stated.  However if, in performing its functions, Qualifications Wales 

pays regard to the economy, stakeholders, comparability, relevance, 

value for money, it will be in line with the second principal aim of the 

Bill and ultimately will address issues related to the current 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



limitations identified in the system. 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved? 

No problems noted.  

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem   

4 – Not a problem. √ 

Question 5 - What are your views on the proposals for determining 

‘priority qualifications’ and, within these, ‘restricted priority 

qualifications’? 

It is an opportunity to streamline the complicated qualifications offer 

currently in place, allowing clearer options when choosing 

qualifications and will give public confidence that whatever 

qualifications  are chosen, they  will meet the reasonable needs of 

learners in Wales and the needs of Further and Higher Education, 

employers and the economy.  It will also address the concerns 

regarding inconsistency across qualifications with the same title and 

could help ensure continuity and coherence within the curriculum.  

 

Conversely, however, it will, as required, limit the qualifications offer 

in Wales and, by linking the priority and restricted priority 

qualifications to public funding, restrict the qualifications market to 

fewer versions of key qualifications.  This may concern stakeholders 

who prefer to have a choice of qualifications of the same title on offer 

and, whilst the intention is not to remove providers from the 

qualifications market, it will reduce the number of Awarding 

Organisations offering some qualifications in Wales to meet the 

stated goal of a single suite of qualifications for Wales.  This in turn 

may reduce the innovation, creativity and relevance of both content 

and assessment methodology of qualifications and should be 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



monitored. 

 

Management of comparability, portability and cross-border currency 

in the UK and Europe is also noted as important for stakeholders 

under the new system and Qualifications Wales will need to ensure 

there is public confidence in the decisions made and a transparency 

in the data used to make these decisions. 

If you think there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

 

Stakeholder involvement throughout the process and stakeholder 

endorsement will be vital to ensure portability and comparability are 

managed.  If learners in Wales are to have a reduced qualification 

offer then what is on offer must allow for progression into Further 

and Higher Education and/or employment within and outside Wales. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem  √ 

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 6 - What are your views on the commissioning type process 

Qualifications Wales would undertake under the Bill, in respect of 

restricted priority qualifications? 

Having notified Awarding Organisations regarding proposals to 

restrict and taken on board responses, Qualifications Wales could: ask 

Awarding Organisations for expressions of interest in designing 

qualifications detailing relevant experience of similar work and how 

the needs of learners in Wales would be met; request that Awarding 

Organisations submit qualification proposals for consideration; 

request that Awarding Organisations submit draft qualifications and 

sample assessment for consideration with the most suitable being 

approved for; ask Awarding Organisations to work collaboratively to 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



design a single restricted priority qualification (although the 

competitive market place makes this challenging); or select from 

qualifications already on offer.  During any of the processes above, 

Qualifications Wales could make decisions about which form or forms 

of qualification it will approve based on the evidence presented.  The 

latter will form a record for any subsequent audit. 

 

Across the current suite of non-degree level, general and vocational 

qualifications this is a potentially large item of work to be carried out 

and it will take some time to meet the objectives stated. 

 

Whatever commissioning type process is chosen, a transparent 

scheme, setting out clear qualification criteria and a procedure for 

determining/selecting which forms will be approved needs to be 

devised.  Firstly, as this is a competitive process subject to scrutiny 

and challenge; secondly to instil public confidence; and, thirdly to 

ensure there has been regard of the eight matters in Part 2, section 3 

(2). 

 

Depending on the competition process devised, this could 

significantly reduce the interest of Awarding Organisations in 

developing qualifications for Wales – i.e. if the development of 

qualifications for the competition incurred significant costs, especially 

if it is a relatively small market or small demand curriculum area. 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

There remains a lack of clarity as to how the commissioning process 

will be carried out.  The Bill outlines that this process will be carried 

out and gives Qualifications Wales the power to design how. 

Therefore, as yet this is to be decided and it will be important that 

this is carefully considered.  This is unlikely to be detail appropriate 

for inclusion in the Bill and so would not hinder progress in the 

legislation.  However it is a more significant - issue in terms of how 

the qualifications market in Wales will actually operate once 

Qualifications Wales is established. 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.  

 3 – This is a minor problem √ 

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 7 - How will the Bill change what organisations do currently 

and what impact will such changes have, if any? 

The Bill will change the current regulatory mechanisms and systems 

in Wales and this will have an impact on three-country processes and 

on interaction with Ofqual and CCEA. 

It will also change the relationships between the Welsh regulator and 

Awarding Organisations.  It is noted in the Bill that the roles and 

responsibilities of both parties are to be reviewed in light of the 

establishment of Qualifications Wales and subsequently clarified, as 

are the inter-relationships. 

 

The aim of a single suite of qualifications may limit the number of 

Awarding Organisations offering qualifications in Wales.  

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

The process for development and offer of priority and restricted 

priority qualifications may need to be clarified as a priority once 

Qualifications Wales is established. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem  √ 

4 – Not a problem.   

  

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Question 8 - What are the potential barriers to implementing the 

provisions of the Bill (if any) and does the Bill take account of them? 

Due to the large number of qualifications currently accredited and on 

offer, it will be a significant challenge to review all vocational and 

general qualifications to allow prioritisation in terms of their 

significance to learners and employers in Wales.  For qualifications 

undergoing revision restricting the number of forms of priority 

qualifications will make this more manageable but overall this is a 

challenging provision. 

If you believe there are problems in this area, how do you think they 

could be resolved?  

Stakeholder involvement in this process will be crucial as will 

sufficient resourcing for Qualifications Wales. 

How significant is this issue? (Please select one option) 

1 – This is a key, urgent problem.   

2 – This is a problem that needs to be addressed.   

 3 – This is a minor problem  √ 

4 – Not a problem.   

Question 9 - Do you have any views on the way in which the Bill falls 

within the legislative competence of the National Assembly for Wales? 

 This would appear appropriate.  

Question 10 - What are your views on powers in the Bill for Welsh 

Ministers to make subordinate legislation (i.e. statutory instruments, 

including regulations, orders and directions)?  
 

In answering this question, you may wish to consider Section 5 of the 

Explanatory Memorandum, which contains a table summarising the 

powers delegated to Welsh Ministers in the Bill to make orders and 

regulations, etc. 

This would appear appropriate in the circumstances outlined in the 

Memorandum. 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



Question 11 - What are your views on the financial implications of the 

Bill? 
 

In answering this question you may wish to consider Part 2 of the 

Explanatory Memorandum (the Regulatory Impact Assessment), which 

estimates the costs and benefits of implementation of the Bill. 

 

Passing the Bill and establishing an arm’s length regulatory body is 

the most costly of the options considered.  However, it is the only 

option of the three which enables progress on some of the Review 

recommendations; addresses the identified limitations of the current 

system; and meets the aims and objectives stated for the qualification 

system in Wales.   

Question 12 - Are there any other comments you wish to make about 

specific sections of the Bill? 

In light of GCSE English issues in summer 2012, the delineation of 

roles of Qualifications Wales and Ofqual (in sections 30 and 31) is 

important to clearly establish who regulates what qualification where, 

as, whilst differing in structure, general qualifications such as GCSEs 

and A levels will have the same titles in England and Wales and the 

same vocational qualifications will be available in both jurisdictions. 

 

Section 41(3) providing for Qualifications Wales to undertake research 

into any matter connected with qualifications is an important aspect. 

This will inform all aspects of the work of Qualifications Wales and 

help instil public confidence in the decisions made in terms of best 

practice and supporting the future strategic development of 

qualifications. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Paper 4 

Qualifications Wales Bill 

Evidence from: Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations (OCR) 

What we do  

1. OCR work with schools, colleges, workplaces and other institutions in the public and private sector. 

Over 13,000 centres choose the A Levels, GCSEs and vocational qualifications we offer, such as 

Cambridge Nationals, Cambridge Technicals and Cambridge Progression qualifications.  There are 

approximately 400 active centres in Wales, representing maintained and independent schools and 

colleges, training providers and employers, offering a range of OCR qualifications. 

 

2. We develop our qualifications in close consultation with teachers, industry leaders and government 

to ensure they are relevant for learners today and meet requirements set by Office of 

Qualifications and Examinations Regulation (Ofqual), Dfes in Wales and CCEA (Regulators) in 

Northern Ireland 

 

3. We support providers to deliver our qualifications, ensuring our customers have access to: 

professional training; support materials; publications; telephone contact with OCR advisors; and 

online access to guidance via our websites. 

 

4. OCR recognises the Welsh Assembly’s intention is to create a qualification system in Wales that is 

responsive to its own policies and independent from policy decisions taken by the Department for 

Education in England.  This desire to achieve an independent examination system for Wales is 

wholly a matter for the Assembly and the people of Wales, but we believe there are risks of such a 

development for learners in Wales and, indeed, in other parts of the UK.  The creation of 

qualifications solely for Wales will result in issues of comparability and transferability, and may 

potentially limit the variety and breadth of offer available. 

 

5. The Bill will allow for Ministers and Qualifications Wales to produce a list of priority qualifications 

and the rationale for creating one national body to deliver the ‘assessment of the main 

qualifications in schools’ ignores the evidence of the successful operation of established awarding 

processes to address this issue.  There is strong evidence that joint awarding body processes have 

successfully delivered comparable standards for many years and it is essential that there is 

transparency about the process that will be in place to ensure that the safety of the awarding 

process is a comparable standard to the rest of the UK.  

 

6. OCR would argue that the creation of a single exam board will not inherently protect standards 

over time or between qualifications or address in any way the main causes of grade inflation. 

Indeed, we believe it would weaken rather than strengthen the capacity of the system to maintain 

standards. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



7. OCR also believe that the creation of a single exam board in Wales risks increasing costs to the tax 

payer, creating new bureaucracies, and removing incentives for efficiency and innovation. 

 

8. We welcome the decision to provide Qualifications Wales with independence from Welsh 

Government, and we support a separation of responsibilities between the function of developing 

and awarding qualifications and the regulation of this activity.  As OCR has long argued for these 

powers to be moved from Welsh government, we are in support of this direction of travel. 

 

9. Qualifications Wales will need to Concentrate upon the delivery of regulation and quality assurance 

providing the public with evidence of the ability to act as a trusted independent body with powers 

to ensure the required standards are delivered throughout the system and promote public 

confidence in qualifications and in the Welsh qualifications system. 

 

10. We would wish to see more attention given on how the emerging difference between GCSEs and 

GCEs will be managed in a way to protect the long term progression into HE of learners and the 

portability of qualifications within all parts of the UK and internationally. 

 

11. The different models for GCSE and GCE that will emerge from 2015 onwards suggest that OCR has 

had to review the range and scope of provision offered to Welsh learners and centres and it will not 

be possible to deliver qualifications that meets the needs of both the Welsh and English markets in 

the future.  This has been expressed with apparent shock from schools in Wales that are current 

OCR centres. 

 

12. The loss of competition between awarding bodies will also have a direct impact on choice. The 

current system offers schools and teachers the ability to choose between a range of options to 

create a learning programme that fits with the aspirations and interests of their pupils and with the 

creation of a single body this inevitably will be removed.  

 

13. Qualifications Wales will inherit a monopoly arrangement where WJEC is the single provider of high 

status, high volume and high risk qualifications and it will need to reassure stakeholders that robust 

measures will be in place to ensure the monopoly arrangements from WJEC continue to deliver 

innovation, responsiveness and reliability. 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

Pearson submission to the Welsh Government – Qualifications Wales Bill 
January 2015 – Page 1 of 2 

 

National Assembly for Wales 

Children, Young People and Education Committee 

CYPE(4)-02-15 – Paper 5 

Qualifications Wales Bill 

Evidence from: Edexcel (Pearson) 

January 2014 

Key points from Pearson response to the consultation, with 

additional evidence 

1. Pearson supports the proposal for the establishment of an independent 

regulator and qualification provider 

Pearson fully supports the establishment of an organisation that acts as an 

independent regulator and qualification provider that will work across the sector to 

ensure learners have access to the best qualifications available. We believe that 

competition, when aligned with effective regulation, is the best means of delivering 

efficient outcomes. In a world of rapid change and constant uncertainty we believe 

that it is essential to have a vibrant qualifications sector able to react to those 

changes. Competition can also drive optimal outcomes, in terms of qualification 

design and implementation. 

2. Collaboration with established awarding organisations could be beneficial 

It should be acknowledged that the new independent regulator will not have 

substantial experience of accrediting and quality assuring high-stakes qualifications. 

In this sense, we would encourage Qualifications Wales to collaborate with awarding 

organisations on the information it will need to fulfil its statutory functions, 

particularly regarding the accreditation and gate-keeping of qualifications. This is to 

minimise unnecessary bureaucracy and inefficiencies whilst ensuring the regulator 

protects the interest of learners in Wales. 

The Welsh Government recently announced that the WJEC would be the sole provider 

of the new GCSEs in English, Welsh and Mathematics from September 2015, along 

with other revised GCSEs from September 2016, as well as revised A/AS levels. We 

would strongly encourage Qualification Wales to work with us on maintaining 

standards across equivalent qualifications. This will be important when the structure 

and design of these qualifications are different (for example coupled verses 

uncoupled AS) and will be extremely challenging where qualifications contain 

different content and skills. 

3. Learners will benefit from qualifications that are portable 

One aspect that must be considered is the need for learners to have qualifications 

that are portable across borders, both within the UK and beyond. The most common 

destination for learners to leave (and enter Wales) is England 

(http://wales.gov.uk/docs/statistics/2013/130312-migration-statistics-2011-en.pdf). 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 

Pearson submission to the Welsh Government – Qualifications Wales Bill 
January 2015 – Page 2 of 2 

 

With this in mind, it is vital that learners have qualifications that will be understood 

and valued by all receiving institutions and other stakeholders in Wales and England. 

Specific examples would include vocational qualifications which confer licence to 

practise such as childcare and healthcare qualifications. It is important not to 

disadvantage learners who may seek to work in other destinations in the UK by 

restricting the use of qualifications to those conferring licence to practise in Wales 

alone. 

4. Minimising disruption and learner choice 

The proposals contained with the consultation, and the 14-19 Review of 

Qualifications, will have a significant impact on the experience of all learners in 

Wales, particularly those that are 14-19 years old. As the provider of qualifications to 

many tens of thousands of these learners, Pearson is aware and prepared for the 

changes that are likely to occur as a result of this consultation. Our primary concern 

is to our learners and to ensuring that their learning experience is not interrupted or 

impeded by organisational change outside of their control. 

We are fully committed to working with the Welsh Government in meeting its vision 

and ensuring learners in Wales continue to have access to the highest possible 

quality qualifications in their education. Pearson invests heavily in providing Welsh 

language translations of specifications and examinations. For example, our Applied 

GCEs are translated and we have committed to translating all of our new BTEC NGs 

in the top sectors in Wales. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 

Pearson FINAL response to Welsh Government consultation on proposals to establish new qualifications body 
for Wales 

December 2013 – Page 1 of 6 

 

Our qualifications – our future 

Consultation on proposals to establish a new qualifications 

body for Wales 

December 2013 

 

Section 3: The case for change 

Question 1 

Are there any other barriers to the effectiveness of the current system or are there any 

other weaknesses? Please give your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Pearson does not believe that there are any significant further barriers to the 

effectiveness of the current system beyond those identified in the consultation 

document.  

 

Question 2 

Are there any specific features in the current system that you would like to see retained? 

Please give your reasons for your answer and comments 

We believe that competition, when aligned with effective regulation, is the best means of 

delivering efficient outcomes. In a world where skills are static or the learning content 

does not change the main benefit of competition will probably be efficient delivery and 

innovation. However, in a world of rapid change and constant uncertainty we believe 

that it is essential to have a vibrant qualifications sector able to react to those changes. 

Competition can also drive optimal outcomes, in terms of qualification design and 

implementation. 

By contrast a system that is reliant on a single supplier of qualifications is likely to 

become less responsive to the market and less efficient in delivery. It will also be a 

single point of failure in the system which can often make quick remedial action more 

difficult to accomplish.  

There is a real danger that Welsh learners will, over time, be disadvantaged in the 

workplace if their education and training through qualifications is not kept at parity with 

developments in other parts of the UK 

Pearson shares with the Welsh Government the frustration of qualification policy 

decisions being made in England that have an unnecessary impact on learners in Wales. 

Any changes that allow for Welsh learners to have a stable qualifications system are to 

be supported. One aspect that must be considered in the education of these learners is 

the need for them to have qualifications that are portable across borders, both within the 

UK and beyond. The most common destination for learners to leave (and enter Wales) is 

England (http://wales.gov.uk/docs/statistics/2013/130312-migration-statistics-2011-

Tudalen y pecyn 49

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/statistics/2013/130312-migration-statistics-2011-en.pdf


 

Pearson FINAL response to Welsh Government consultation on proposals to establish new qualifications body 
for Wales 

December 2013 – Page 2 of 6 

 

en.pdf). With this in mind, it is vital that learners have qualifications that will be 

understood and valued by all receiving institutions and other stakeholders in Wales and 

England.  

Pearson greatly values the excellent working relationship it has with the Welsh 

Government on matters of qualification and education policy and looks forward to this 

continuing. 

Section 4: Our vision  

Question 3 

What are your views on our proposed vision for Qualifications Wales? Please give your 

reasons for your answer and comments. 

Pearson fully supports the establishment of an organisation that acts as an independent 

regulator and qualification provider that will work across the sector to ensure learners 

have access to the best qualifications available. Pearson is fully committed to its own 

continuous improvement and working with stakeholders in Wales to ensure its 

qualifications are fit for purpose for use in Wales, the UK and beyond.  

We would encourage Qualifications Wales to work as collaboratively as possible across 

the United Kingdom and internationally with other regulators and awarding 

organisations. Pearson would like to see a regulator that stands up and supports 

awarding organisations when needed to provide reassurance to learners and other 

stakeholders on the quality of awarded qualifications.  

It should be acknowledged that the new independent regulator will not have substantial 

experience of accrediting and quality assuring high-stakes qualifications. In this sense, 

we would encourage Qualifications Wales to collaborate with awarding organisations on 

the information it will need to fulfil its statutory functions, particularly regarding the 

accreditation and gate-keeping of qualifications. This is to minimise unnecessary 

bureaucracy and inefficiencies whilst ensuring the regulator protects the interest of 

learners in Wales.  

The consultation suggests that there will be instances where Qualifications Wales may 

seek to provide qualifications in competition with Pearson and other awarding 

organisations. Where this occurs, a transparent qualification development and 

accreditation process, with published criteria that apply equally to all AOs, including 

Qualifications Wales, will be vital to the credibility of this process.  

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 50

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/statistics/2013/130312-migration-statistics-2011-en.pdf


 

Pearson FINAL response to Welsh Government consultation on proposals to establish new qualifications body 
for Wales 

December 2013 – Page 3 of 6 

 

Section 5: How we will achieve the vision 

Question 4 

What are your views on whether these proposed activities and functions will achieve the 

vision for Qualifications Wales? Please give your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Pearson is keen to work with Qualifications Wales to achieve its vision for learners in 

Wales. In this capacity we already work, and will continue to do so, work with a range of 

stakeholders across Wales in the delivery of our qualifications. 

Currently, we believe there is a need for further information on paragraph 5.9 in the 

consultation document regarding the future qualification provision of Qualifications Wales 

and other awarding organisations. This is to allow us, centres and learners to be 

confident in the provision that can be offered in the short, medium and long-term. 

Awarding organisations are already developing qualifications for September 2015 and 

2016 and, to ensure we meet the needs of Qualifications Wales, we need a concrete 

understanding of what provision we will be able to offer.  

It would be helpful to have more information on the quality assurance requirements and 

their possible criteria that are detailed in 5.1 - 5.13. It is currently unclear when these 

will be applied and how the benefit of the quality assurance will be measured. Pearson 

welcomes the scrutiny and reassurance that regulatory approval brings and would be 

happy to work with Qualifications Wales on how monitoring and other activities can 

satisfy these proposals.  

The proposal in paragraph 5.12 states that qualifications will not be funded solely 

because they are quality assured by Qualifications Wales; instead funding decisions will 

be taken by the Welsh Government. Whilst Pearson supports this proposal, it does raise 

a question as to the future role of DAQW as a database of qualifications in Wales. 

Currently, DAQW is in the process of becoming a database of qualifications where 

awarding organisations have applied for funding. As part of developing the proposal in 

5.12 further, we would welcome clarification on how future databases of either quality 

assured, accredited or funded qualifications will function.  

 

Question 5 

What are your views on the proposed governance arrangements for Qualifications 

Wales? Please give your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Pearson has no objections to the governance arrangements in their current detail. We 

welcome the proposal to work in partnership with Qualifications Wales in the provision of 

qualifications where it can be done in the best interests of learners in Wales. In any 

possible collaboration it will be vital that qualifications can still be offered to the 

necessary standard and service that centres can currently expect from awarding 

organisations. Pearson would be happy to work further with Welsh Government and 

Qualifications Wales on the proposals as set out in 5.37. 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 

Pearson FINAL response to Welsh Government consultation on proposals to establish new qualifications body 
for Wales 

December 2013 – Page 4 of 6 

 

However, further information is required on how the new regulator will be able to 

effectively make independent and objective decisions when accrediting Qualifications 

Wales qualifications and those offered by other awarding organisations. This will require 

transparency to maintain the confidence of those developing and delivering qualifications 

for learners in Wales. As part of this, it will be vital that qualifications awarded by 

Qualifications Wales are held to account in the same way as those by other awarding 

organisations, as detailed in proposal 5.23. 

 

Question 6 

What are your views on the proposed scope and functions of Qualifications Wales? Do 

you think its scope and functions are about right or should it have a different remit? 

Please give your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Pearson fully supports the proposed scope for Qualifications Wales that is set out in 

paragraph 5.20. This states that the new regulator will ‘set high level design principles 

for qualifications that allow awarding bodies to deliver in Wales those qualifications that 

they also offer elsewhere such as in England and Northern Ireland’. 

This aspect of qualification provision is vital to learners in Wales who will, in many cases, 

being using their qualifications to progress to opportunities outside of Wales. Likewise, it 

enables learners from outside Wales to progress in education and employment within 

Wales.  

 

Question 7 

What should Qualifications Wales do to strengthen public confidence in qualifications 

offered in Wales? Please give your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Public confidence is a vital component for any educational jurisdiction.  

We would encourage Qualifications Wales to use the expertise of organisations such as 

Pearson to provide support in strengthening public confidence in qualifications awarded 

to Welsh learners. This will allow the new regulator to broaden the expertise within its 

regulated portfolio and bring best practice from around the world into the learning 

environments of Wales.  

Pearson has recently announced details of its World Class Qualifications project 

(http://uk.pearson.com/world-class-qualifications.html). This project aims to ensure that 

Pearson qualifications uphold an internationally benchmarked standard and are 

demanding, rigorous, inclusive and empowering. 

As part of its work on World Class Qualifications, Pearson has developed a suite of Level 

1 / 2 vocational IVET qualifications that are now available in Wales. These BTEC Level 2 

next generation qualifications are the successors to Pearson’s existing BTEC Level 2 QCF 

provision.  

Tudalen y pecyn 52

http://uk.pearson.com/world-class-qualifications.html


 

Pearson FINAL response to Welsh Government consultation on proposals to establish new qualifications body 
for Wales 

December 2013 – Page 5 of 6 

 

More information on these qualifications is available at 

http://www.edexcel.com/quals/firsts2012/Pages/default.aspx. We have worked closely 

with teachers, learners and a range of other stakeholders to develop these qualifications 

and ensure they represent the very best progression opportunities for level 2 learners, 

and a platform from which to build the skills required by employers and Higher Education 

providers in global markets. The majority of these qualifications will be fully available in 

Welsh and English.  

 

Question 8 

How and to what extent do you feel that these proposals will have an impact on you, 

your organisation, learners and/or any particular categories of stakeholders? Please give 

your reasons for your answer and comments. 

Clearly the proposals contained with the consultation, and the 14-19 Review of 

Qualifications, will have a significant impact on the experience of all learners in Wales, 

particularly those that are 14-19 years old. As the provider of qualifications to many tens 

of thousands of these learners, Pearson is aware and prepared for the changes that are 

likely to occur as a result of this consultation. Our primary concern is to our learners and 

to ensure that their learning experience is not interrupted or impeded by organisational 

change outside of their control. We are fully committed to working with the Welsh 

Government in meeting its vision and ensuring that learners in Wales continue to have 

access to the highest possible quality of qualifications in their education.  

 

Question 9 

We have asked a number of specific questions. If you have any related issues which we 

have not specifically addressed, please use this space to report them. 

We do not have any further questions at this point and would only reiterate our desire to 

work with the Welsh Government and the future Qualifications Wales whenever possible.  

 

Responses to consultations are likely to be made public, on the internet 

or in a report. If you would prefer your response to remain anonymous, 

please tick here: 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 53

http://www.edexcel.com/quals/firsts2012/Pages/default.aspx


 
 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-02-15 - Paper to note 6 

Tudalen y pecyn 54

Eitem 4.1



Tudalen y pecyn 55



 
 
 
 
CYPE(4)-02-15 - Paper to note 7

Tudalen y pecyn 56

Eitem 4.2



Tudalen y pecyn 57



P-04-559 Secondary School Awareness of Self-Harm – Correspondence from 

the Petitioner to the Clerking Team, 31.10.14.  

Dear Kayleigh, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to further comment upon this petition. 

Within other comments, it is noted by Mr Bob Hudson 

that www.kooth.com "operates 24 hours a day", however it should be noted that 

throughout a day, queues on this site are enormous and many young people are left 

waiting for hours before receiving the chance to talk to a counsellor within specified 

time limits.  

 

Mr Huw Lewis also states that "As part of the school curriculum in Wales, personal 

and social education (PSE) prepares learners to be personally and socially effective 

by providing learning experiences in which they can develop and apply skills, 

explore personal attitudes and values, and acquire appropriate knowledge and 

understanding." This is truthful, however this education is not effective if not 

enrolled successfully within schools, with some schools opting out of providing this 

service to save time to prepare for examinations. This is sensible however can result 

in a lack of understanding of important issues such as self-harm. This is why more 

emphasis should be made on PSE lessons and teachers should be more adequately 

informed on how to teach these specific lessons. 

 

In conclusion to increase acknowledgement and awareness of self-harm altogether 

would see the requirement of organisations to partake in activities with young 

people to boost understanding. The effectiveness of these activities would be 

dependant on how many schools these were enrolled in.  

 

Kind regards, 

 

Eleanor Price 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58

http://www.kooth.com/


Tudalen y pecyn 59



Tudalen y pecyn 60



Tudalen y pecyn 61



Tudalen y pecyn 62



Sara Hammond-Rowley  29 Aug 2014 

Response from BCUHB Emotional Health and Wellbeing Service Board to the 
Petition re Secondary School Awareness of Self Harm  
 
29th August 2014 
 
Petition Title: Secondary School Awareness of Self-Harm  
 
The Petitions Committee has received the following petition from Eleanor Price which 
collected 12 signatures:  
 
Petition Wording:  
We call on the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to put in 
place more educational programmes (specifically in Secondary Schools) to 
counteract many peoples misunderstanding of self-harm.  
A growing issue amongst teenagers in Wales, 43% of people know somebody who 
has self-harmed according to a BBC survey. In the same survey, it was reported that 
41% think that self-harm is selfish.  
Additional Information: Due to the sheer volume of occurrences in self-harm among 
teenagers in Wales, I feel that there should be more awareness and approachability 
of the subject. Why should a teenager suffer in silence? This is why I believe that as 
a country we should provide more substantial resources for a sufferer to find free 
assistance in battling self-harm.  
 
The Committee considered the petition for the first time at the meeting on 17 June 
and would be very grateful for your views on this matter. 
 
Response 
 
We very much welcome that this important issue has been highlighted at a national 
level, and thank you for seeking our views. A summary of the current situation in 
North Wales, our goals and current work plan is provided below. If any further 
information is required, please do not hesitate to contact us.  
 
Current situation in North Wales 
 
Young people who harm themselves currently get a very varied response from 
schools and other front line community services across North Wales. This can range 
from little or no response at all to immediate urgent referral to local specialist Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS), regardless of need. In addition, 
and of equal concern, in some areas, universal services hold cases that have not 
previously met criteria for specialist CAMHS and some of those professionals report 
being relatively unsupported in this task.  
 
There is a high level of variation in the level of knowledge skill and confidence in 
knowing how to respond to concerns about self harm and expression of suicidal 
thoughts in schools and other multi-agency front line services. In response to national 
drivers, there has been a steady increase in the number of (largely uncoordinated) 
training courses in self harm and suicidal behaviour in recent years. These have 
been and continue to be provided by health, social care and third sector agencies, 
targeting front line staff, including teachers and other school based staff who work 
with children, young people and families. These courses are mainly one-offs, are 
often delivered by trainers who do not know the local service context, and mainly 
focus on increasing awareness and early recognition with advice to respond kindly 
and with compassion, and to refer all presentations on to specialist services. 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



Sara Hammond-Rowley  29 Aug 2014 

For children and young people, there continues to be on-going high referral rates of 
self harming behaviour into specialist CAMHS in the context of what appears to be a 
national increase in self harming behaviours. Referral on is not always the right 
response for the young person, and nor is it a sustainable response in light of 
growing numbers and finite resources at specialist levels.  
 
In response to our growing concern about the levels of self harming behaviour in 
young people, in October 2013, the Emotional Health and Wellbeing Service Board 
supported a proposal that specialist CAMHS services offer an informed and 
systematic North Wales approach to addressing the needs of children and young 
people at risk of suicide or self-harm who are identified in schools and other front line 
services. This approach needs to ensure that children young people and front line 
professionals gain appropriate and timely help, and that children and young people 
are assessed and referred into specialist services appropriately where needed. 
 
Why do we need a more consistent approach? 
 
 To improve the quality of support, advice and guidance offered to young people 

who self-harm, or who may be at risk of committing suicide 
 To offer consistent support to children and young people no matter what the point 

of contact, and to standardise the response of agencies regardless of which 
agency 

 To increase knowledge, skills and competence of staff in non-specialist services 
to recognise and respond appropriately when working with a young person who 
self-harms. 

 
Service Delivery Context 
 
Part 1 of the Mental Health Measure came into force 1st October 2012 – specialist 
CAMHS Single Point of Access arrangements are now in place in each county 
across North Wales. Plans are currently being made to ‘launch’ the new access 
arrangements in each county. All specialist CAMHS teams across North Wales are 
working hard to introduce new ways of working, which requires a shift in emphasis 
from routinely assessing all cases referred – which frequently and repeatedly leads to 
lengthy waits – to carrying out initial discussion and consultation to determine needs. 
Care is then ‘matched’ to presenting need through a range of possible modes of 
intervention: 
 

 Advice and information and where necessary, training 
 Signposting to alternative services or activities in the community  
 Working alongside a professional through consultation where this is 

appropriate to the needs of the young person (sometimes this will be with 
the professional who refers, sometimes it will be alongside another 
professional) 

 Access to universal or targeted evidence based intervention in the 
community  

 Comprehensive mental health assessment. 
 
 
Background  
 
Prior to the introduction of the Mental Health Measure, Primary Mental Health 
practitioners in each county largely led the delivery of specialist CAMHS led training 
to front line staff on self harm as required under old AQF targets. In some counties, 

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Sara Hammond-Rowley  29 Aug 2014 

this has also included the availability of regular consultation with specialist CAMHS 
practitioners. Where consultation has been consistently available, pathways have 
been agreed with the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board, which has led to a well 
received system of universal awareness training combined with targeted skills 
training, the goal of which is to equip selected school based and other front line staff 
to carry out rapid early first stage risk assessment in close collaboration with 
specialist CAMHS in order to determine next steps. Regular (once a term) meetings 
for multi-agency staff who have received skills training are also organised and led by 
specialist CAMHS to ensure access to appropriate support and information updates 
for these selected and trained professionals. 
 
This approach adheres to principles from ‘Talk to Me’ and NICE in establishing 
sources of help at the first point of contact, quickly assessing risk, and establishing 
what’s needed next. It also ensures that appropriately trained mental health 
professionals are providing the required level of consultation in collaboration with the 
professional who first becomes aware of a problem, in order to determine risk. This 
avoids delays in first stage assessment resulting from joining waiting lists, but 
ensures that those at highest risk are seen for mental health assessment as quickly 
as possible.  
 
Connecting with People – Dr Alys-Cole-King 
 
Selected staff from specialist CAMHS have trained as trainers in the Suicide 
Awareness module. We are currently liaising with Dr Cole-King to adapt the materials 
for delivery to staff who work with children and young people, as the content is 
focused on adults. It also focuses on suicide awareness only. We will be including 
self harm as well as suicide awareness into one jointly agreed module for school and 
other front line professionals – partly because there is considerable overlap in the 
messages contained in both awareness level trainings, and also because it is not 
realistic to expect school staff to attend two separate training courses on this subject. 
Once complete this jointly developed training module will form the first level of 
awareness training in the regional pathway of training offered to schools and other 
front line professionals.  
 
What will a Specialist CAMHS training and consultation pathway look like?  
 

1. Standardised locally delivered awareness-level training in self harm and 
suicide, available on a regular basis for any multi-agency front line 
professionals including schools  

2. Standardised locally delivered skills-level training, including first stage basic 
risk assessment questions, available for selected multi-agency front line staff 
who will be linked to specialist CAMHS through each Single Point of Access. 
These people will be the first point of contact when self harm comes to light in 
the community. These trained staff will link directly in to specialist CAMHS 
and receive help in managing the situation, and will together carry out 
immediate first level risk assessment, and agree best next steps  

o Professional consultation outcome for those identified as low risk  
o Mental Health Assessment outcome for those identified as high risk 

3. Regular (e.g. once a term) on-going multi-agency meetings to keep those 
trained in first stage risk assessment updated, connected with each other and 
to specialist CAMHS. 

  

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



Sara Hammond-Rowley  29 Aug 2014 

Where are we up to?  
 
 Unanimous support for the development and delivery of the pathway at Emotional 

Health and Wellbeing Service Board 31st October 2013 
 Work with the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board is underway to ensure that 

the community components of the pathway are incorporated into the review of the 
regional protocol for managing young people who self harm 

 Close liaison with Dr Alys Cole-King is underway and the jointly agreed adapted 
materials for the Suicide [and Self Harm] Awareness module for use with 
professionals working with young people are nearing completion  

 Early stage plans are in place for implementation in four of the six counties 
across North Wales – close links are in place with local specialist CAMHS 
management structures to ensure that there is support for the delivery of the 
community pathway in each county – once this has been ratified with the regional 
multi-agency LSCB plans will be made to visit local multi-agency planning groups 
including where possible Secondary Heads Federation Meetings to agree local 
implementation 

 Liaison will be maintained with the newly formed North Wales Talk to Me 2 
regional ‘network’ to review it’s terms of reference and aims and objectives – 
attendance will depend on the goals of the group.  

 
 
Relevant additional Information  
 

Talk to Me Action Plan 2009-2014 
talktomee%5b1%5d

.pdf
T4MH delivery 

plan.pdf  
Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan 2012-2016 
Links to NICE Clinical Guideline 16 (2004)  http://guidance.nice.org.uk/CG16  and NICE 
Quality Standards 34 (2013) 
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/index.jsp?action=byID&o=14200  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

http://guidance.nice.org.uk/CG16
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/index.jsp?action=byID&o=14200


Tudalen y pecyn 67



 

 

Bwrdd Iechyd  Prifysgol Hywel Dda 
 Swyddfeydd Corfforaethol, Adeilad Ystwyth, 
Hafan Derwen, Parc Dewi Sant, Heol Ffynnon Job, 
Caerfyrddin, Sir Gaerfyrddin, SA31 3BB 

 

Hywel Dda University Health Board  
 Corporate Offices, Ystwyth Building,Hafan 
Derwen, St Davids Park, Job’s Well Road, 
Carmarthen, Carmarthenshire, SA31 3BB 

Cadeirydd / Chairman 
Mrs Bernardine Rees OBE 
 
Prif Weithredwr /Chief Executive  
Mrs Karen Howell 

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol Prifysgol Hywel Dda 
Hywel Dda University Health Board is the operational name of Hywel Dda University Local Health Board 

Mae Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda yn amgylchedd di-fwg   Hywel Dda University Health Board operates a smoke free environment 

 
Ein cyf/Our ref: 

Eich cyf/Your ref: 

Gofynnwch am/Please ask for: 

Rhif Ffôn /Telephone: 

Ffacs/Facsimile: 

E-bost/E-mail: 

TO 

P-04-559 

Teresa Owen 

01267 239729 

 

teresa.owen@wales.nhs.uk 

Swyddfeydd Corfforaethol, Adeilad Ystwyth 
Hafan Derwen, Parc Dewi Sant,  
Heol Ffynnon Job 
Caerfyrddin, Sir Gaerfyrddin, SA31 3BB 

  
Corporate Offices, Ystwyth Building 
Hafan Derwen, St Davids Park, Job’s Well 
Road, Carmarthen, Carmarthenshire,  
SA31 3BB 

 
William Powell AC/AM 
Chair 
Petitions Committee 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
 
Dear Mr Powell 
 
Petition Title:  Secondary School Awareness of Self Harm 
 
Thank you for your letter to Mrs Karen Howell, Interim Chief Executive, dated July 2014, 
regarding the petition “Secondary School Awareness of Self Harm”. 
 
On behalf of Hywel Dda University Health Board, here is our response:   
 

There are a number of services available to support young people as well as a formal approach to 

their GP. All secondary schools have a named school nurse and local authorities provide a School 

Counselling Service. In addition all schools have Pupil Support Officers. All these services provide 

support for a wide range of student concerns many of which are associated with self harming 

behaviours. 

 

Although these resources are available they can only help where young people in distress 

acknowledge their issue and seek help. 

 

The Healthy School Initiative  as well as supporting pupils and teaching staff to adopt healthy 

lifestyle approaches such as good nutrition  and exercise also provides a range of materials  and 

training to enable  school communities to engage in open discussion about difficult issues such as 

self harm. The intention is to give teachers and pupils the confidence to recognise and offer support 

to friends and pupils in distress who find it difficult to seek help themselves. 

 

Self harm is not an easy area to tackle and can lead to individuals being stigmatises by their peers. 

It is often the result of low self esteem which itself will make it difficult for an individual to seek 

help. Recently a DVD “Get the Low Down” has been produced by our Child and Adolescent 

Mental Health Service that provides material to help generate the discussion. Training for teachers 

to be able to use this material is essential and is underway in some schools which will add to the  

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



 

 

Bwrdd Iechyd  Prifysgol Hywel Dda 
 Swyddfeydd Corfforaethol, Adeilad Ystwyth, 
Hafan Derwen, Parc Dewi Sant, Heol Ffynnon Job, 
Caerfyrddin, Sir Gaerfyrddin, SA31 3BB 

 

Hywel Dda University Health Board  
 Corporate Offices, Ystwyth Building,Hafan 
Derwen, St Davids Park, Job’s Well Road, 
Carmarthen, Carmarthenshire, SA31 3BB 

Cadeirydd / Chairman 
Mrs Bernardine Rees OBE 
 
Prif Weithredwr /Chief Executive  
Mrs Karen Howell 

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol Prifysgol Hywel Dda 
Hywel Dda University Health Board is the operational name of Hywel Dda University Local Health Board 

Mae Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda yn amgylchedd di-fwg   Hywel Dda University Health Board operates a smoke free environment 

 

 

resources available to tackle self harm. 

 

Yours Sincerely 

 

 
 

 

Teresa Owen 

Director Public Health  

 

 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



 

Huw Lewis AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau 
Minister for Education and Skills 
 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300 

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400 

                Correspondence.Huw.Lewis@wales.gsi.gov.uk 

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper 

 
 
Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-559  
Ein cyf/Our ref HL/01610/14 
 
William Powell AM 
Chair Petitions Committee 
 
committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 

Dear William  
 
Thank you for your letter dated 23 July informing me of Eleanor Price’s petition on the 
subject of increasing the number of education programmes regarding self harm in Welsh 
secondary schools. 
 
As part of the school curriculum in Wales, personal and social education (PSE) prepares 
learners to be personally and socially effective by providing learning experiences in which 
they can develop and apply skills, explore personal attitudes and values, and acquire 
appropriate knowledge and understanding. 
 
The PSE framework for 7 to 19-year-olds in Wales sets out the aim to provide the 
foundation for a broad, balanced holistic approach to PSE which features a range of 
experiences to promote the personal and social development and well-being of learners. 
This framework is the key document that schools should use in planning their personal and 
social education programme. A copy of this framework can be found from the attached link 
below: 
 
http://learning.wales.gov.uk/resources/personal-and-social-education/?skip=1&lang=en 
 
The five key themes identified in the PSE framework are: Active Citizenship; Health and 
Emotional Well-being; Moral and Spiritual Development; Preparing for Lifelong Learning; 
and Sustainable Development and Global Citizenship.  
  
Through the Health and Emotional Well-being theme, learners can be helped to maintain 
their emotional and physical health, sustain their growth and development, and know how to 
keep themselves safe. Learners are given opportunities to understand the short and longer 
term consequences when making decisions about personal health and how to access 
professional health advice and personal support with confidence. 
 
 
 
 

           6 August 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 70

http://learning.wales.gov.uk/resources/personal-and-social-education/?skip=1&lang=en


The delivery of the curriculum is delegated to schools and decisions on the precise content, 
materials and resources of a school’s PSE programme rests with head teachers and their 
governing bodies, to ensure that it meets the needs of children and their local community.   
 
As part of their work for the Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes (WNHSS), schools 
will be looking at all aspects of mental and emotional health and well-being. They will 
identify areas of concern in their school, and may choose to develop a programme to deal 
with the issue.  Although self harm is not specifically mentioned in the WNHSS guidance, 
this does not preclude schools from dealing with this issue. 
 
In March, I announced the appointment of Professor Graham Donaldson to lead a wide 
ranging, independent review of the national curriculum and assessment arrangements in 
Wales, which includes PSE. 
 
The full terms of reference for Professor Donaldson’s review are available from the link 
below:  
 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-
wales/terms-of-reference/?lang=en.  
 
Listening is at the heart of Professor Donaldson’s review, and I will forward a copy of your 
letter to him. If you would like further information on the review please contact:  
CurriculumReview@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 
I hope that this information demonstrates that the Welsh Government is committed to 
working with secondary schools to develop programmes, policies and guidance aimed at 
tackling the issue of self harm in secondary schools. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 

 
 
 
Huw Lewis AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau 
Minister for Education and Skills 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 71

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales/terms-of-reference/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales/terms-of-reference/?lang=en
mailto:CurriculumReview@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru  - Sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	CYPE(4)-02-15 - Papur 1
	CYPE(4)-02-15 - Papur 2

	3 Bil Cymwysterau Cymru – Sesiwn dystiolaeth 5
	CYPE(4)-02-15 - Papur 4
	CYPE(4)-02-15 - Papur 5

	4.1 Llythyr oddi wrth yr Athro y Fonesig Sue Bailey – CAMHS yng Nghymru
	4.2 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau - P-04-559 Ymwybyddiaeth mewn Ysgolion Uwchradd o Hunan-niweidio



